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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Commissioners of
Housing Authority of the Township of Lakewood:

Report on the Financial Statements

‘We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities (primary government) and the
discretely presented component unit of the Housing Authority of the Township of Lakewood (the "Authority") as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United States
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs,
State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal confrol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

NOVOGRADAC & COMPANY LLP P 732.503.4257 OFFICE 1433 Hooper Avenue, Suite 329
F 732.341.1424 Toms River, New Jersay 08753
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net position of the
primary government and the discretely presented component unit of the Authority, as of December 31, 2017, and the
changes in their net position and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Correction of Error

As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements, certain errors that resulted in overstatements of amounts previously
reported for notes receivable and net position as of December 31, 2016, were discovered by management of the Authority
during the current year. Accordingly, net position as of December 31, 2016 has been restated to correct these errors. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis and required pension information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquities, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comptise the
Authority's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purpose of
additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The accompanying financial data schedule is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements and is presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and financial data schedule are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements ot to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and financial data schedule are fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.




Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 26, 2018 on our
considetration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal

control over financial reporting and compliance.

September 26, 2018
Toms River, New Jersey
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

As Management of the Housing Authority of the Township of Lakewood
(the “Authority”), we offer readers of the Authority’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with the Authority’s financial
statements as presented elsewhere in this report.

A

Financial Highlights {Primary Government)

1. The Authority’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its

liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most

recent fiscal year by $9,011,604 (net position) as opposed to
$8,688,123 for the prior fiscal year.

. At the close of the current fiscal year, the Authority reported ending

unrestricted net position of $2,817,696.

. The Authority’s unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and restricted

cash balances at December 31, 2017 were $4,186,324 representing a
decrease of $256,247 from the prior fiscal year.

. The Authority had total operating revenues of $15,266,413 and total

operating expenses of $15,034,931 for the year ended December 31,
2017.

. The Authority’s capital outlays for the fiscal year were $7,714.

. The Authority’'s expenditures of federal awards amounted to

$14,114,691 for the fiscal year.

Using the Annual Report

1. Management's Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an
introduction to the Authority’s financial statements. The Authority's
financial statements and Notes to Financial Statements included in this
Report were prepared in accordance with GAAP applicable to
governmental entities in the United States of America.




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Using the Annual Report (continued)

2. Financial Statements

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the Authority's finances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business. They consist of a Statement of Net Position,
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and
Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the
Authority’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two
reported as net position. Increases or decreases in net position will
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
presents information showing how the Authority’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of unrelated cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents relevant information about the
Authority's cash receipts and cash payments during the year.

The financial statements report on the Authority’'s activities. The
activities are primarily supported by HUD subsidies and grants. The
Authority’s function is to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing to
low income and special needs populations. The financial statements
can be found on pages 12 through 16 in this Report.

3. Notes to Financial Statements

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that
is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic
financial statements. The Notes to Financial Statements can be found
in this Report after the financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Using the Annual Report (continued)

4. Supplemental Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America require that a schedule of pension contributions and schedule
of net pension liability be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards can be
found on page 41 of this report.

The accompanying financial data schedule is also not a required part
of the financial statements and is presented for the purposes of
additional analysis as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development.

The Authority as a Whole (Primary Government)

The Authority’s net position decreased during the fiscal year as detailed
on the following page. The Authority’s revenues are primarily subsidies
and grants received from HUD. The Authority receives subsidies each
month based on a pre-approved amount by HUD. Grants are drawn down
based on need against a pre-authorized funding level. The Authority's
revenues were sufficient to cover all expenses, excluding depreciation
during the fiscal year.

By far, the largest portion of the Authority’s net position reflects its net
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment and
construction in progress). The, Authority uses these capital assets to
provide housing services for its tenants consequently these assets are not
available for future spending. The unrestricted net position of the
Authority is available for future use to provide program services.




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

C. The Authority as a Whole {Primary Government) (continued)

Computations of Net Position are as follows:

As of
12/31/2017 12/31/2016
Cash and Other Current Assets $ 2,216,220 $ 3127707
Restricted Cash 1,971,941 1,423,214
Notes Receivable 3,813,534 3,732,708
Capital Assets - Net 4,313,920 4,704,279
Deferred Outflows of Resources 948,365 1,256,703
Total Assets 13,263,980 14,244,611
Less: Total Liabilities 3,601,132 4.467,912
Deferred Inflows of Resources 651,244 1,088,576
Net Position $ 9,011,604 $ 8,688,123
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 4,313,920 $ 4,704,279
Restricted Net Position 1,879,988 1,168,647
Unrestricted Net Position 2,817,696 2,815,197
Net Paosition $ 9,011,604 $ 8,688,123

¢ Restricted cash increased $548,727 primarily due to increases in the
restriction of funds to Reserve for Repairs and Replacement in
accordance with RAD agreements in 2017.

e Notes receivable increased $80,826 due to accrued interest included
in the note receivable balance.

e Total iiabilities decreased $866,780 along with deferred outflows of
resources $303,560 and deferred inflows of resources $437,332 due
to the Authority recording their unfunded net pension liability in FY
2017 as required by Government Accounting Standards Board
Opinion No. 68 (GASB 68).

» Unrestricted net position increased $2,499 primarily due to the
Authority recording their unfunded net pension liability in FY 2017 as
required by Government Accounting Standards Board Opinion No, 68
(GASB 68).




C.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

The Authority as a Whole (Primary Government) (continued)

Computations of Changes in Net Position are as follows:

Year Ended
1213172017 12/31/2016
Revenues
Tenant Revenues $ 754,841 $ 747,721
HUD Operating Grants 14,212,039 12,875,271
Other Revenues 299 533 281,635
Total Operating Revenues 15,266,413 13,904,627
Expenses
Other Operating Expenses 3,005,559 3,112,916
Housing Assistance Payments 11,631,299 11,421,640
Depreciation Expense 398,073 413,817
Total Operating Expenses 15,034,931 14,948,373
Operating Gain/(Loss) 231,482 (1,043,746)
Non-Operating Revenues & Expenses
Interest on Investments 91,999 174,662
Interest Expense - (50,981)
HUD Capital Grants - 147,125
Total Non-Operating Revenues 91,999 270,806
Change in Net Position 323,481 (772,940)
Net Position - Beginning of Year 8,688,123 9,461,063
Net Position - End of Year $ 9,011,604 $ 8,688,123

» HUD operating grants increased $1,336,768 from $12,875,271 in
fiscal year 2016 to $14,212,039 in fiscal year 2017. This was
primarily due to the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program
receiving $2,426,734 in funding in FY 2017. These amounts were
offset by a decrease of $590,274 in Public Housing Capital Funds
and $746,133 in Public and Indian Housing Program Funds used
for operations as part of the RAD Conversion.



C.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

The Authority as a Whole {Primary Government) (continued)

» Administrative expenses increased $8,357 primarily due to the
recognition of $155,219 of GASB 68 related pension costs as well
as an increase in administrative salaries.

» Housing assistance payments ("HAP”") expense increased from
$11,421,640 in fiscal year 2016 to $11,631,299 in fiscal year 2017
or $209,659. This increase in HAP expense can be attributable to
the Authority having 198 more unit months under lease in FY 2017.

Budgetary Highlights

For the year ended December 31, 2017, individual program or grant
budgets were prepared by the Authority and were approved by the Board
of Commissioners. The budgets were prepared in accordance with the
accounting procedures prescribed by the applicable funding agency.

As indicated by the increase of revenues over expenses, the Authority’s
net position increased during the fiscal year.

Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2017, the Authority’s investment in capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation was $4,313,920. This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, equipment and construction in progress.

Major capital assets purchased during the year totaled $7,714, of which
was purchased from operations.

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in the
Notes to the Financial Statements, which is included in this Report.




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Capital Assets {(continued)

The following table summarizes the change in capital assets as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016 Change
Land $ 313,844 $ 313,844 § -
Buildings and improvements 13,308,330 13,308,330 -
Furniture and equipment 216,591 208,877 7,714
Construction in progress - - -
Total fixed assets 13,517,207 13,831,051 115,868
Less: accumulated depreciation 9,524,845 9,126,772 398,073
Net fixed assets $ 4313920 $§ 4704279 390,359

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered in preparing the Authority's budget
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018:

1. The state of the economy.

2. The need for Congress to fund the war on terrorism and the
continued cut-back of funding of federal programs.

3. The Authority’s use of unrestricted reserves to offset the proration
of subsidy from HUD. The Authority’s unrestricted cash appears
sufficient to cover any shortfall.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Contacting the Authority's Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the
Authority’s finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to Mary Jo Grauso, Executive
Director, Housing Authority of the Township of Lakewood, 317 Sampson
Avenue, Lakewood, NJ 08701.

[1
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017
ASSETS
Memorandum
Only -
Discretely Total
Primary Presented_ Reporting
Government Component Unit Entity
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,691,048 % 469,704 § 2,160,752
Tenant security deposits - 53,631 53,631
Accrued interest receivable 1,185 - 1,185
Accounts receivable, net 521,841 11,665 533,506
Prepaid expenses 2,146 - 2,146
Inventories - 38,550 38.550
Total current assets 2,216,220 573,550 2.789.770
Non-current assets:
Restricted cash 1,971,941 - 1,971,941
Notes receivable and accrued interest 3,813,534 - 3,813,534
Capital assets, net 4.313.920 - 4.313.920
Total non-current assets 10,099,395 - 10,099 395
Total assets 12.315.615 573,550 12.889.165
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

State of New Jersey P.E.R.S. 948,365 - 948,365

Total assets and deferred outflows
of resources $ 13.263.980 % 573,550 % 13,837,530

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (continued)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

LIABILITIES
Memorandum
Only -
Discretely Total
Primary Presented Reporting
Government Component Unit Entity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 129,918 § 517,835 % 647,753
Accrued expenses 46,934 - 46,934
Accrued compensated absences, current 8,790 - 8,790
Tenant security deposits - 54,181 54,181
Prepaid rent - 1,534 1,534
Total current liabilities 185,642 573,550 759,192
Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, non-current 79,111 - 79,111
Net pension liability 3,244,426 - 3,244,426
Other non-current liabilitics 91,953 - 91,953
Total non-current liabilities 3,415,490 - 3.415,490
Total liabilities 3.601.132 573.550 4.174.682
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
State of New Jersey P.ER.S. 651,244 - 651,244
NET POSITION
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 4,313,920 - 4,313,920
Restricted 1,879,988 - 1,879,988
Unrestricted 2.817.696 - 2.817.696
Total net position 9.011.604 - 9,011,604

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and net position $ 13,263 980

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Memorandum
Only -
Discretely Total
Primary Presented Reporling
Government Component Unit Entity
Operating revenues:
Tenant revenue $ 754,841  § - b 754,841
HUD operating grants 14,212,039 - 14,212,039
Other revenues 206.533 - 299.5313
Total operating revenues 15,266.413 - 15.266,413
Operating expenses:
Administrative 1,770,779 - 1,770,779
Tenant services 66,676 - 66,676
Utilities 440,071 - 440,071
Ordinary repairs and maintenance 520,518 - 520,518
Protective services 70,435 - 70,435
General expenses 137,080 - 137,080
Housing assistance payments 11,631,299 - 11,631,299
Depreciation 398.073 - 398,073
Total operating expenses 15,034,931 - 15,034,931
Operating income 231,482 - 231,482
Non-operating revenues
Investment income 51,999 - 91,999
Total non-operating revenues 01,999 - 91,999
Change in net position 323,481 - 323,481
Total net position, beginning of year 11,199.772 - 11.199.772
Prior period adjustment (2,511,649) - (2,511,649)
Total net position, beginning of year {as restated) 8.688.123 - 8.688.123
Total net position, end of year b 9.011.604 § - $ 9.011.604

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from tenants
Cash received from grantors
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid to vendors

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities:

Purchases of capital assets

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the
Statement of Net Position is as follows:

Casli and cash equivalents
Tenant security deposits
Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Memorandum
Only -
Discretely Total
Primary Presented Reporting
Government Component Unit Entity

$ 627,956 % 50,712 § 678,668

14,174,962 374,187 14,549,149
{1,770,779) - (1,770,779)
(13,667,696) (49,048) (13.716.744)
{635,557) 375,851 (259.706)
{(7.714) - {(7.714)
(1.714) - {7.714)

11.173 - 11,173

11,173 - 11.173
{632,098) 375,851 (256,247)

4,295,087 147,484 4.442.571

$ 3,662989 § 523335  §% 4,186,324

$ 1,691,048 % 469,704  § 2,160,752

- 53,631 53,631

1,971,941 - 1,971.941

$ 3,662,980 § 523335 % 4,186,324
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cagh provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Changes in operating assets, liabilities, deferred

outflows and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid rents
Grants received in advance
Accounts payable
Tenant security deposits
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensated absences
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred outflows of resources
Accrued pension liability
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activitics

Sec accompanying notes to financial statements,

Memorandum
Ounly -
Discretely Total
Primary Presented Reporting
Government Component Unit Entity

$ 231482 § - $ 231,482

308,073 - 398,073
(310,426) (3,327) (313,753)
(487) - (487)

43,641 {38,550) 5,091
(2,060) - {2,066)

- 110 110
(1,083,215) - (1,083,215}

(1,605} 364,255 362,650

(47,769) 53,363 5,594

2,656 - 2,656

8,181 - 8,181

645,883 - 645,383

308,338 - 308,338
(794,224) - (794,224)
(34.019) - (34,019
$ (635.557) § 375851 % (259.706)
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWO0OOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Organization

The Housing Authority of the Township of Lakewood (the "Authority") is a governmental, public
corporation created under federal and state housing laws as defined by State statute (N.J.S.A. 4A: 12A-1,
et. seq., the “Housing Authority Act”) for the purpose of engaging in the development, acquisition and
administrative activities of the low-income housing program and other programs with similar objectives
for low and moderate income families residing in the Township of Lakewood, New Jersey (ihe
"Township"). The Authority is responsible for operating certain low-rent housing programs in the
Township under programs administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
("HUD"). These programs provide housing for eligible families under the United States Housing Act of
1937, as amended.

The Authority is governed by a board of commissioners which is essentially autonomous but is
responsible to HUD and the State of New Jersey Department of Community Affairs. An executive
director is appointed by the Authority's Board of Commissioners to manage the day-to-day operations of
the Authority.

B. Basis of Accounting / Preparation of Financial Statements

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
(Statements and Interpretations).

The programs of the Authority are organized as separate accounting entities. Each program is accounted
for by a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position (program equity), revenues, and expenses. The
individual programs account for the governmental resources allocated to them for the purpose of carrying
on specific programs in accordance with laws, regulations, or other restrictions, including those imposed
by HUD. The programs of the Authority are combined and considered an enterprise fund. An enterprise
fund is used to account for activities that are operated in a manner similar to those found in the private
sector.

The Authority's enterprise fund is accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, and losses from assets and Habilities resulting
from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in accordance with GASB 34, Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governmenis, as amended
("GASB 34"). GASB 34 requites the basic financial statements to be prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and requires the preseniation of a
Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and
Statement of Cash Flows. GASB 34 also requires the Authority to include Management's Discussion and
Analysis as part of the Required Supplementary Information.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Basis of Accounting / Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)

The Authority's primary source of non-exchange revenue relates to grants and subsidies, In accordance
with GASB 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions ("GASB 33"), grant
and subsidy revenue are recognized at the time eligible program expenditures occur and/or the Authority
has complied with the grant and subsidy requirements.

On January 30, 2008, HUD issued PIH Notice 2008-9 which requires that unused housing assistance
payments ("HAP") under proprictary fund reporting should be reported as restricted net position, with the
associated cash and investments also being reported as restricted. Any unused administrative fees should
be reported as unrestricted net position, with the associated assets being reported on the financial data
schedule as unrestricted.

Both administrative fee and HAP revenue continue fo be recognized under the guidelines set forth in
GASB 33. Accordingly, both the time and purpose restrictions as defined by GASB 33 are met when
these funds are available and measurable, not when these funds are expended. The Section 8 Housing
Choice Voucher program is no longer a cost reimbursement grant; therefore, the Authority recognizes
unspent adminisirative fee and HAP revenue in the reporting period as revenue for financial statement
reporting,

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.305(b)(9), any investment income earned up to $500 on these funds may
be retained by the Authority, Amounts in excess of $500 must be remitied annually to the Department of
Health and Human Services, Payment Management System.

The Autherity adopted GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions ("GASB 68").
GASB 68 established standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and expenditures associated with pension plans of State and Local
Governments. For defined benefit pensions, GASB 68 identifies the methods and assumptions that
should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actual present
value, and atiribute that present value to periods of employee service, In addition, GASB 68 details the
recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with liabilities to a defined benefit pension plan
and for employers whose employees are provided with defined contribution pensions.

C. Reporting Entity

In accordance with GASB 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus - An Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 14 and No. 34, the Authority’s basic financial statements include those of the Authority
and any component units. Component units are legally separate organizations whose majority of officials
are appointed by the primary government or the organization is fiscally dependent on the primary
government and there is a pofential for those organizations either to provide specific financial benefits to,
or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. Reporting Entity (continued)

An organization has a financial benefit or burden relationship with the primary government if any one of
the following conditions exist:

1. The primary government (Authority) is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the
organization's resources.

2. The primary government is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to finance
the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization.

3. The primary government is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization.

Based on the application of the above criteria, this report includes all programs and activities operated by
the Authority, including the following discretely presented component unit;

Affordable Housing Corporation of Lakewood

Affordable Housing Corporation of Lakewood (the "Organization") was incorporated under the laws of
the State of New Jersey as a non-profit corporation on Angust 17, 2016. The Organization's purpose is to
improve the quality of life for low and moderate income people (as defined by regulations promulgated
by HUD or the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing) by providing them with affordable housing
and housing opportunities primarily through the administration of Housing Choice Vouchers. Currently,
the Organization's only activity is the administration of the Authority's project based vouchers for which
it does not charge a fee.

D. Description of Programs

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher

The Authority administers a program of rental assistance payments to private owners on behalf of
cligible low-income households under Section 8 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1974,
The program provides payments covering the difference between the maximum rental on a dwelling unit,
as approved by HUD, and the amount of rent contribution by a participating household.

Mainstream Voucher

The Mainstream Voucher Program provides vouchers for low-income households that include a person(s)
with disabilities, The program provides payments covering the difference between the maximum rental
on a dwelling unit, as approved by HUD, and the amount of rent contribution by a participating
household,

Public and Indian Housing

The Public and Indian Housing Program is designed to provide low-cost housing within the Township,
Under this program, HUD provides funding via an annual coniributions contract, These funds, combined
with the rental income received from tenants, are available solely to meet the operating expenses of the
program, During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Authority converted all of its Public and Indian
Housing units to project based vouchers throngh HUIY's Rental Assistance Demonstration Program.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWQOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. Description of Programs (continued)

Public Housing Capital Fund

The purpose of the Public Housing Capital Fund Program is to provide another source of funding to
cover the cost of physical and management improvements and rehabilitation on existing low-income
housing and improving the central office facilities. Funding for this program is provided by grants from
HUD.

Shelter Pius Care Program

Shelter Plus Care is a program designed to provide housing and supportive services on a long-term basis
for homeless persons with disabilities, (primarily those with serious mental illness, chronic problems
with alcohol and/or drugs, and acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS or related diseases) and
their families who are living in places not intended for human habitation (e.g. streets) or in emergency
shelters.

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services - Service Coordinators

The purpose of the Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services - Service Coordinators program is to
address the needs of the public housing residents by provided service coordinator positions to coordinate
supportive services, resident empowerment activities and/or assisting residents in becoming
economically self-sufficient or age-in-place.

Business Activities Fund

The Business Activities Fund was created as part of the Rental Assistance Demonstration Program
("RAD™). RAD was created in order to give public housing authorities ("PHA") a powerful tool to
preserve and improve public bousing properties. RAD allows PHA's to leverage public and private debt
and equity in order fo reinvest in public housing stock, Public housing units move to a Section 8
platform with a long-term contract under which residents continue to pay 30% of their income towards
rent. The former public housing units which were converled under the RAD program are contained in
this non-federal fund.

E. Use of Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates include the
allowance for doubtful accounts, accrued expenses and other liabilities, depreciable lives of properties
and equipment, amortization of leasehold improvements and confingencies. Actual results could differ
significantly from these estimates.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWO0OOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

New Jersey Authorities are required by N.J.S.A. 40A:5-14 to deposit public funds in a bank or trust
company having its place of business in the State of New Jersey and organized under the laws of the
United States, or the State of New Jersey, or the New Jersey Cash Management Fund. N.J.S.A. 40A:5-
15.1 provides a list of securities which may be purchased by New Jersey Authorities.

The Authority is required to deposit funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions
of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect
governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-42 requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located
in New Jersey, when the funds are secured in accordance with the act.

HUD requires housing authorities to invest excess funds in obligations of the United States, Certificates
of Deposit, or any other federally insured investment. HUD also requires that deposits be fully
collateralized at all times. Acceptable collateralization includes FDIC insurance and the market value of
securities purchased and pledged to the political subdivision. Pursuant to HUD restrictions, obligations of
the United States are allowed as security for deposits. Obligations furnished as security must be held by
the Autherity or with an unaffiliated bank or trust company for the account of the Authority.

It is the Authority's policy to maintain collateralization in accordance with state and HUD requirements,
For the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at time of purchase.

G. Accounts Receivable, Net

Rents are due from tenants on the first day of each month. As a result, accounts receivable balances
primarily consist of rents past due and vacated units. An allowance for doubtful accounis is established to
provide for all accounts, which may not be collected in the future for any reason. Collection losses on
accounts receivable are charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts. Also included in accounts
receivable are those amounts that tenants owe the Authority as payment for committing frand or
misrepresentation.

H. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Authority periodically reviews all accounts receivable to detcrmine the amount, if any, that may be
uncollectable. If it is determined that an account or accounts may be uncollectable, the Authority
prepares an analysis of such accounts and records an appropriate allowance against such amounts,

L. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid as of year-end that will benefit future operations.

21




NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
J. Capital Assets

Capital assets arc stated at cost. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged directly to
expense as they are incurred. Expenditures determined to represent additions or betterments are
capitalized. Upon the sale or retirement of fixed assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation is
eliminated from the accounts and any related gain or loss is reflected in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on
the estimated useful lives of the following asset groups:

. Furniture and Equipment 5-10 Years
. Buildings and Improvements 15 - 40 Years

The Authority has established a capitalization threshold of $5,000.

K. Impairment of Long Lived Assefs

The Authority evaluates events or changes in circumstances affecting long-lived assets to determine
whether an impairment of its assets has occurred. If the Authority determines that a capital asset is
impaired, and that the impairment is significant and other-than-temporary, then an impairment loss will
be recorded in the Authority's financial statements, During the year ended December 31, 2017 there were
no impairments losses incurred.

L. Inventory

The Authority's inventory is comprised of maintenance materials and supplies. Inventory is carried at
net realizable value and the Authority uses the first-in, first-out ("FIFO") flow assumption in
determining cost. The consumption method is used to record inventory. Under this method, the
acquisition of materials and supplies is recorded initially in inventory accounts and charged as
expenditures when used. If inventory falls below the cost due to damage, deterioration or obsolescence,
the Authority establishes an allowance for obsolete inventory. At December 31, 2017, inventory is
shown net of an allowance for obsolescence of $3,743.

M. Notes Receivable

The Authority has utilized development funds in accordance with HUD guidelines to assist in the
construction and redevelopment of numerous public housing developments through the issuance of
mortgage notes. When preparing financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, management is required to make estimates as to the collectability of such mortgage notes.
When estimating collectability, management analyzes the value of the underlying mortgaged property,
the property’s ability to generate positive cash flow, and curtent economic trends and conditions.
Managenent utilizes these estimates and judgments in connection with establishing an allowance for
uncoilectable amounts during an accounting period.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
N. Inter-program Receivables and Payables

Inter-program receivables/payables are current, and are the result of the use of the Business Activities
fund as the common paymaster for shared costs of the Authority. Cash settlements are made
periodically, and all inter-program balances net to zero. In accordance with GASB 34, interprogram
receivables and payables are eliminated for financial statement purposes.

0. Compensated Absences

The Authority uses the vesting method for the recording of compensated absences whereas benefits are
accrued at the net position date for which payment is probable. Compensated absences represent
amounts fo which employees are entitled based on accumulated leave earned in accordance with the
Authority's Personnel Policy. Employees may be compensated for accumulated vacation leave in the
event of retirement or termination from service based on the unused accrued leave. Employees may be
compensated for sick leave at retitement or termination at 50% of accumulated sick time up to a
maximum of $15,000.

P. Prepaid Rent

The Authority's prepaid rent primarily consists of the prepayment of rent by residents applicable to future
periods.

Q. Operating Revenues and Expenses

The Authority defines its operating revenues as income derived from charges to residents and others for
services provided, as well as government subsidies and grants used for operating purposes. Operating
expenses are costs incurred in the operation of its program activities to provide services to residents and
others. The Authority classifies all other revenues and expenses as non-operating.

R. Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources, This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources until that
time.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until that
time,
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
S. Taxes

The Authority is a unit of local government under New Jersey law and is exempt from real estate, sales
and income taxes.

T. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/deductions from PERS's fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

U. Economic Dependency

The Federal Programs of the Authority are economically dependent on operating grants and subsidies
from HUD. The programs operate at a loss prior to receiving the grants.

V. Equity Classifications

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

Net_investment in capital asseis - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets,

Restricted net position - Consists of resources with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position - All other resources that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net
investment in capital assets."

W. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Authority is required by contractual agreements to adopt annual, appropriated operating budgets for
all its programs receiving federal expenditure awards. All budgets are prepared on a HUD basis, which
is materially consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
All appropriations lapse at HUD's program year end or at the end of grant periods.

Pursuant fo N.J.S.A 40A:5A-10 and N.J.A.C. 5:31, the Anthority is also required fo submit an authority

wide budget for each fiscal year to the Director of the Division of Local Government Services sixty (60)
days prior to the end of the fiscal year,
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NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWQOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
X. Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Authority is a member of
the New Jersey Public Housing Authorities Joint Insurance Fund ("JIF").

The joint insurance pool is both an insured and self-administered group of housing authorities established
for the purpose of insuring against property damage, general liability, motor vehicles and equipment
liability and workmen's compensation. The JIF will be self-sustaining through member premiums. There
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded
insurance coverage for the year ended December 31, 2017,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As of December 31, 2017, the Authority had funds on deposit in checking, savings and money market
accounts. The carrying amount of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents {including restricted cash)
was $4,186,324, and the bank balances approximated $4,315,812.

Memorandum

Discretely Only -

Presented Total

Primary Component Reporting

Cash Category Government Unit Entity
Unrestricted § 1,691,048 § 469,704 $ 2,160,752
Tenant security deposits - 53,631 53,631
Restricted 1.971.941 - 1.971.941

Total cash and cash equivalents $___3.662.989 § 523335 $___4.186.324

Of the bank balances, $760,692 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining
$3,555,120 was collateralized by GUDPA as of December 31, 2017.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be

returned to it. The Authority does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31,
2017, the Authority's bank balances were not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net consists of the following at December 31, 2017:

Discretely
Presented Total
Primary Component Reporting

Description Government Unit Entity
Accounts receivable - HUD $ 12,303  § - $ 12,303
Accounts receivable - tenants, net - 6,348 6,348
Accounts receivable - other government 10,352 - 10,352
Accounts receivable - fraud recovery, net 47,452 4,751 52,203
Accounts receivable - miscellaneous 451,734 566 452.300
Total accounts receivable, net $ 521,841 % 11,665 $ 533.506

Accounts Receivable - HUD

As of December 31, 2017, Accounts receivable - HUD consisted of amounts due from the Department of
Housing and Urban Development. Management estimates the amounts to be fully collectible and
therefore no allowance for doubtful accounts has been established.

Accounts Receivable - Tenants, Net
Tenant accounts reccivable represents amounts owed to the Authority by tenants for outstanding rent.
The balance is shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,480,

Accounts Receivable - Other Government

Accounts receivable - other government represents amounts owed to the PHA by other federal agencies
and state and local governments. Management estimates the amounts to be fully collectible and therefore
no allowance for doubtful accounts has been established.

Accounts Receivable - Fraud Recovery, Net

Accounts receivable - fraud recovery, net represents amounts owed from tenants or other program
participants who committed fraud or mis-representation and now owe additional rent or retroactive rent.
The amount is shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $60,515.

Accounts receivable - miscellancous

Accounts receivable - miscellaneous consists of amounts owed to the primary government from the
diseretely presented component unit for the administration of project based vouchers ($433,431) and for
items such as late fees and key replacements. Management estimates the amounts to be fully collectible
and therefore no allowance for doubtful accounts has been established.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

The Authority has utilized grants and other development funds in accordance with HUD guidelines to
assist the Authority in its participation in RAD through the issuance of mortgage loans.
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NOTE 4,

NOTE 5.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTES RECEIVABLE (continued)

Outstanding notes recetvable of the primary government as of December 31, 2017 consisted of the

following:

Description

On September 11, 2015 the Authority entered a loan agreement in the amount of
$3,028,076 with Chambers Crescent, LLC in connection with the sale of Residential
ERG Tax Credit Certificates related to the property located at 438 Cedar Bridge
Avenue known as John F, Kennedy Apartments. The outstanding balance of
$30,281, bears interest at 2.82% per annum. Interest will accrue annually and all
principal and accrued interest will be due on September 1, 2070. The loan is
secured by a second mortgage.

On September 11, 2015 the Authority took back a seller's note from Chambers
Crescent, LLC in connection with the sale of property and improvements known as
John F, Kennedy Apartments. The loan, which totaled $2,990,000, bears inierest at
2.82% per annum, Interest will be paid annually beginning on September 1, 2016
and on each anniversary thereafter equal to forty percent (40%) of project cash flow,
The loan is secured by a Third Mortgage and matures on September 1, 2070
whereby all unpaid interest and principal is due, At December 31, 2017 accrued
interest on the loan totaled $193,228,

On September 11, 2015 the Authority entered a loan agreement with Chambers
Crescent, LLC. The loan, which totaled $600,000, bears interest at 0.01% per
annum. Payment of principal and interest is due in fuil on the maturity date which is
30 years from the datc of commencement of amortization of the New Jersey
Housing Mortgage Finance Agency mortgage. The loan is secured by the property.
At December 31, 2017 accrued interest on the loan totaled $25.

Total notes receivable and accrued interest

As of December 31, 2017, the current portion of notes receivable amounted to $-0-,

GROUND LEASE

On September 11, 2015, as part of the sale of John F. Apartments, the Authority entered info a ground
lease agreement with the purchaser, Chambers Crescent LLC, to lease the parcel of land located at 438
Cedar Bridge Road, Lakewood, NJ. for a term of eighty (80) years. As part of the agreement, the lessee
will pay all taxes and assessments associated with the property and $72,000 per annum ($6,000 monthly)

in rent over the term of the lease.
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NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

As of December 31, 2017, restricted deposits consisted of the following:

Cash Category

Housing assistance payments reserve
Family Self Sufficiency program escrows

Reserve for replacements
Tenant security deposits

Total restricted deposits

Memorandum
Discretely Only -
Presented Total
Primary Component Reporting
Govermnment Unit Entity
$ 456,186  § - b 456,186
91,953 - 01,953
1,423,802 - 1,423,802
- 53.631 53.631

$__1.971941 § 53.631

$_ 2025572

Housing assistance payment reserves are restricted for use only in the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher
Program for future housing assistance payments.

Family Self Sufficiency ("FSS") program escrows are resiricted for use in the Section 8 Housing Choice

Voucher Program by FSS program participants.

Reserve for replacement funds are required to be set aside for future project expenditures in accordance
with the RAD Conversion Commitment.

Tenant security deposits represent amounts held by the Authority on behalf of tenants, Upon termination
from the program, the tenant is due amounts deposited plus interest earned less any amounts charged for

damage to the unit.

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET
The following is a summary of the primary government's changes in capital assets during the year ended
December 31, 2017:
December 31, December 31,
Description 2016 Additions Dispositions  Transfers 2017
Non-depreciable:
Land $_ 313844 §_ - - $ - $_313.844
Depreciable:
Buildings and improvements 13,308,330 - - - 13,308,330
Furniture and equipment 208,877 7.714 - - 216,591
Total 13,517,207 7.714 - - 13,524,921
Less: accumulated depreciation 9,126,772 398,073 - - 9.524.845
Net capital assets $ 4704279 $(390,359) $_ - $ - $_4313.920
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NOTE 8.

NOTE 9.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities of the primary government as of December 31, 2017 consisted of the following:

Amounts
December 31, December 31,  due within
Description 2016 Additions Payments 2017 one Year
Compensated absences $ 79720 § 129,766 § (121,585) $ 87,901 § 8,790
Net pension liability 4,038,650 - (794,224) 3,244,426 -
Family self sufficiency escrows 125,972 - (34,019 91,953 -
Total long-term liabilities $ 4244342 §_ 129766 $_(949.828) §$3.424280 § 8,790
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
As of December 31, 2017, accounts payable consisted of the following:
Memorandum
Discretely Only -
Presented Total
Description Primary Component Reporting
Government Unit Entity
Accounts payable - vendors $ 116,873  §$ 52,927 § 169,800
Accounts payable - HUD 742 - 742
Accounts payable - PHA projects 12,303 433,431 445,734
Accounts payable - other governments - 31.477 31.477
Total accounts payable b 129918 § 517.835 % 647,753

Accounts Payable - Vendors

Accounts payable - vendors represents the amounts payable to confractors and vendors for materials
received or services rendered.

Accounts Payable - HUD

As of December 31, 2017, accounts payable - HUD consisted of amounts payable to the Department of
Housing and Urban Development,

Accounts Payable - PHA Projects

Accounts payable - PHA projects represents amounts due to the Authority from the discretely presented
component unit for HAP Payments ($433,431) and due to other PHASs under the portability provisions of
the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program.

Accounts Payable - Other Governments

Accounts payable - other governments represents amounts due and payable to other federal agencies and
state and local governments.
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NOTE 10.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

PENSION PLAN
A. Plan Description

The State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System ("PERS™) is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and
Benefits (the "Division™. For additional information about PERS, please refer to the Division's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which can be found at www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-
reports.shtml.

B. Benefits

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.I.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death and
disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest
after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following represents the
membership tiers for PERS:

Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

e i

Service retirement benefits of 1/55% of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to
tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service
retirement benefits of 1/60% of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4
members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65,

Early retirement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62
with 25 years or more of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 with 30 years or more of service credit
before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month a member retires prior to
the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective
tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25
years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit
and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.

C. Contributions

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.L.S.A. 15A and requires contributions by active members
and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the State.
The State’s pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount, which includes the
employer portion of the normal cost and an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for
noncontributory group insurance benefits is based on actual claims paid.
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NOTE 14.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

PENSION PLAN (continued)
C. Contributions (continued)

The local employers’ contribution amounts are based on the actuarially determined rate, which inchudes
the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an option for local
employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability contribution amounts certified
for payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will be credited with full payment and any
such amounts will not be included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries will determine the unfunded
liability of those retirement systems, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability
contributions provided under this law. This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level
annual payments over a period of 15 years beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June
30, 2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of the assets.

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2017, the Authority reported a liability of $3,244,426, for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of July 1, 2016, and rolled forward to
June 30, 2017.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Authority recognized pension expense of $155,219, At
December 31, 2017, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources from the following sources.

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes of Assumptions $ 653,640 § 651,244
Changes in Proportion 196,238 -
Differences between expected and actual experience 76,395 -
Net differences between actual and projected
earnings on pension plan investments 22,092 -
Net differences between Proportionate Share
and actual Contribution - -
Total $ 0948365 % 651,244
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NOTE 10,

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

PENSION PLAN (continued)

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Ontflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending December 31: Amount
2018 $ 224,944
2019 339,446
2020 205,687
2021 (273,564)
2022 (199.392)
$ 297,121

E. Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial
valuation used the following assumptions:

Inflation Rate 2.25%

Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.65-4.15%
based on age

Thereafier 2.65-5.15%
based on age

Investment rate of return 7.00%

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Preretirement Mortality Table for
male and female active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males
and females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for females.
In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a
generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Postretirement
mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (sct
back 1 year for males and females} for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and one-
year static projection based on moriality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service
retirements and beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from the
base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014
projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000
Disabled Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward 1 year for females).
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NOTE 14.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

PENSION PLAN (continued)
F. Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on plan investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and the Division of Pensions and Benefits,
the board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset
class included in PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following
table:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Absolute return/risk mitigation 5.00% 5.51%
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00%
1.8, Treasuries 3.00% 1.87%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78%
Public high yield 2.50% 6.82%
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private real asset 2.50% 11.83%
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23%
U.S. equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08%

G. Disconnt Rate

The discount rate used to measure the fotal pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30, 2017. This single
blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
7.00% and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index, which includes fax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from the plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year,
The State employer contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers
contributed 100% of their actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current
plan members through 2040, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments through 2040 and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected
benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.
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NOTE 1¢.

NOTE 11.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

PENSION PLAN (continued)

H. Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 5.00 percent, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (4.00
percent) or 1 percentage point higher (6.00 percent) than the current rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(4.00%) (5.00%) (6.00%)
Authority's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $___4.024931 §___3244426 $__ 2594169

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Authority participates in New Jersey State Health Benefits Program (the “SHBP™), which qualifies
as a cost-sharing, multiple-employer plan in accordance with GASB 45 dccounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The SHBP is administered
by the State of New Jersey, Department of Treasury, Division of Pension and Benefits.

Under the SHBP, retirees may continue the health benefits programs in which they are enrolled at the
time of retirement, provided the retiree pays the costs of the benefits (at group rates) for themselves and
their eligible dependents.

A retiree may also receive Authority-paid health benefits in accordance with labor agreements if they
have twenty-five (25) or more years enrolled in the pension system.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly
available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information
of the SHBP. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Departiment
of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295,

The SHBP is established under the authority of N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.25 et seq. and regulations adopted by
the State Health Benefits Commission. The required contribution rate is determined on an annual pay as
you go basis. The following were the required contributions:

Year Amount

2017 $ 229,985
2016 $ 232.646
2015 $ 229331
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NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

NOTE 14.

NOTE 15,

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES

Under Federal, State and local law, the Authority's programs are exempt from income, property and
excise taxes. However, the Authority is required to make a payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) for the
PHA Owned Program in accordance with the provisions of its Cooperation Agreement with the
Township. Under the Cooperation Agreement, the Authority must pay the Township the lesser of 10% of
its net shelter rent or the approximate full real property taxes. During the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2017, PILOT expense of the primary government amounted to $31,477.

RESTRICTED NET POSITION

As of December 31, 2017, restricted net position of the primary government consisted of the following:

Description Amount
Reserve for replacement b 1,423,802
Housing assistance payment reserves 456,186
Total restricted net position $ 1,879,988

Reserve for replacement funds are restricted for future project expenditures in accordance with the RAD
Conversion Commitment,

Accumulated carnings in connection with the overpayment of housing assistance payments are restricted
for rent payments to landlords as part of the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program.

CONTINGENCIES

The Authority receives financial assistance from HUD in the form of grants and subsidies. Entitlement
to the funds is generally conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of funds for eligible purposes. Substantially all
grants, entitlements and cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by HUD. As
a result of these andits, costs previously reimbursed could be disallowed and require payments to HUD.
As of December 31, 2017, the Authority estimates that no material liabilities will result from such audits
other than what has been disclosed herein.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The Authority's financial statements have been restated due to a correction of an error related to notes
receivable that were incorrectly recorded in the prior years. As a result of the error, unrestricted net
position and notes receivable have been decreased by $2,511,649 as of December 31, 2016.
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NOTE 16.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWQOD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the financial statement date but before the financial statements were available to
be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide
evidence about conditions that existed at the financial statement date are recognized in the accompanying
financial statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the
financial statement date require disclosure in the accompanying nofes to the financial statements.
Management evaluated the activity of the Anthority through September 26, 2018 (the date the financial
statements were available to be issued) and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that
would require recognition in the financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial
statements.
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‘ CERTEFEELY PLIBLIC AUCCRINTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners of
Housing Authority of the Township of Lakewood:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standatrds applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of
Community Affairs, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the Housing Authority of the Township of
Lakewood (the "Authority") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 26, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority's internal control.

A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

NOVOGRADAG & COMPANY LLP P 732.503.4257 OFFIGE 1433 Hooper Avenue, Suite 329
F 732.341.1424 Toms River, New Jersey 08753
W www novoeo.com
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do nof express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This

report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

September 26, 2018 /\[W % QW W

Toms River, New Jersey
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CERTEFHEDY PLUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND
STATE OF NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

To the Board of Commissioners of
Housing Authority of the Township of Lakewood:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Housing Authority of the Township of Lakewood's (the "Authority") compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-
08 that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2017, The Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal
awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority's major federal programs based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Reguiations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirementis for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority's compliance.

NOVOGRADAG & COMPANY LLP P 732.503.4257 OFFICE 1433 Hooper Avenue, Suite 329
F 732.341.1424 Toms River, New Jersey 08753
W www.novoco.com
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Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the Authority's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and State of New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal contro! over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correet, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal confrol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A sigmificant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirerment of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by thoge charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control ovetr compliance that tight be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal contrel over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the State
of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

September 26, 2018
Toms River, New Jersey
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NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
grant activity of the Authority under programs of the federal government for the year ended December
31, 2017. The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance} and State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-
08. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of operations of the Authority, it is not
intended to and does not present the net position, changes in net position or cash flows of the Autherity.
Therefore, some amounts presented in the Schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of the financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, OMB Circular
A-87 and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented
where available.

INDIRECT COST RATE

The Authority has not elected to use the ten percent de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance,

CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM COSTS AND ADVANCES
Capital Fund Grants No. NJ39P05450115 and NJ39P05450116 with an approved funding of $328,526

and $286,526, respectfully, have been fully drawn down and expended as per Capital Fund Grant
Regulations.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statement Section

1. Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
2. Internal control over ﬁnéncial reporting
a. Material weakness(es) identitied? No
b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? No
3. Noncompliance material to the financial statements? No
Federal Awards Section
1. Internal Control over compliance:
a. Material weakness(es) identified? No
b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? No
2. Type of auditors' report on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified
3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No
4, Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
14.879 Mainstream Voucher
5. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B Programs: $750,000
6. Auditee qualified as low-risk Auditee? No
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1L

Iv.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LAKEWOOD
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings or questions costs relating to federal awards,

Summary of Prior Audit Findings

There were no findings or questioned costs in the prior year.
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Lakewoud Housing Authority

NJU54

Financial Datn Sehedule {FDS)

Decanber 31, 2017

Compoaenl Unil - Discretely
Account Deseription Irojects Housing Choice Youchers Mainsiream Vouchers Presented
Line ltemn #
ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS: ;
Crsh: :
Ll Cash - bnrestricicd H 1,240,905 - 469,704
[Tk Cash - resiricled - modemization and develupmen - - B
L3 Cnsh - othor restricted 548,139 N N
114 Chsh - tena seeurity deposils - - 53,631
[15 Cash - resiricted for payment of cunent fizbilitic - - -
100 Total cush 780,044 - 553535
[
Accamils and notes receivables T
21 | Accounts recelvable - PHA project: B - -
122 | Accounls receivabli - HUD ether project. - 12,303 _
124 Accounts receivable - other governmen 4,935 - -
V5] Accounts receivable - miscell 12,303 - 565
26 Accounts v ble- tenant - - B.828
1261 Allpwancs for doubtful socounts - tenunt: - - (2A80)
126.2 Allowance for doubiful aceounts - othe - B B
127 ‘Notes pnd morigages receivable- ourren - - -
128 Frivad recovery 107 967 N 4,351
128.1 Allowances for doubiful acceunts - fraud (60,515} - -
i29 Accred inferest receivabl L,L1EBS - -
L20H Tokal ivablcs, net of all Tor doubtfol necount 65,875 ¢ 12,303 11,665
[
‘Current investment:
130 Tnvestments - umesiricler - - 5
£32 Invasiments - rostrictec - - z
§35 Tnvestments - resteicted lor payment of current liabilit - - -
142 Prepaid expenses and uthier asret N - N
143 Invenlories - - 42293
143.1 Allowance for obsolete inventorie: - N 3,743}
134 Tnterprogrom - due fron B . s
145 Asets held for sale - - ~
15¢] | TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,854,910 12303 373,550
L1
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
i assels:
161 Land L - N
.6y Buiklings - - - -

B ) Fumiturc, inury - dwelling N P
164 PFumilure, inery - adimin, - -
165 Leasehold improvernents - -
166 A luicd ds jor__ - -
167 C ion in Progrese - N
168 - - -
160 " | Total fixed askely, nel ol accumulated depreclation - - =

_ Qtlier now-current nssets:

m Notes and ivabl - - -
172 Notes otk niorigages receivablonoii-ciréet - past du - z -

B 174y Ofher nsseks - B .
175 Undistributed debits - - -
196 Trvesimenl in joinl venlure: - - -
180; ‘TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS - Z -

Deferred Outflow of Resourao 754,381 - -
1
290| FOTAL ASSETS & DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES E] 2,309,304 12,303 573,550
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Lak . ing Authority
Noosd | | ¢ |
Financial Dala Schedulo (FDS} e
| I - -
Desember 31, 2017
Companent Unit - Discretely
Account Deseripti Prajects Huousing Choice Yeuchers Mainsiceam Youchers Presented
Linc ltem # :
i1 |
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY:
Linbililies:
Curent Lishilitios:
— 31l iBank averdrall - - 5 N
312 TAceomnils payible= 90 days 104,109 - 52,927
313 jAecounts payable > 20 days past dug - - -
321 ‘Aceried wage/payroll tases payaGl 28,006 - B
322 Acerucd | absenges - cunent porlior 4180 - -
324 Accrued i linbili - - -
325 Accrued interest payablk - B ™ N
£ Accounis payable - HUD PHA progiam: T f 5
n Accounts payable - FHA projects - 12,303 433,431
333 A ts payable - other gy - - 37477
EL]H Tenant securily deposite - - 54,181
342 Uncamed rovenur - - 1339
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capitel project: - - A
344 Current poriion of L-T debi - operating borrewing: - - B
345 Ofher cuerent ligbitities - - _
96 A ccrued Tiabilitles - oiher - - -
347 Lintesprogsrain - dus 1c - - N
316] | TOTALCURRENT LIABILITIES 139037 2307 371550
NUNCJRRENT LIABILITIES:
350 Long-tcim debt, net ol GITa - GRpiti] prajeet - O -
352 Long-ierm elebi, net of cutrenl - opesating borcowing - - -
353 Non-conent liabilities- other 91,553 - -
354 Acerigd L ubsonces - nomcwien : 55,619 - -
355 Loan Liabilily - Non Cowen i - - z
156 FASD 5 Liabilitics ! - - -
_3a7 Accrued pensjon and OPEB fiebilitie: 1,412,651 - -
350 TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 1,360,223 - -
300 TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,699,260 12,302 31,550
[
400 Deferred Inflow vf Rerourye 458,590 - -
T
|
. I .
EQUITY:
508.1 lnvesied in Capilal Assels, Net of Related Detn " - - o
5111 Restricted Nel Assels 456,186 - —
5120 Unrostricted Net Askol: (304,736 N -
513 QU T5145¢ — .
606 TOTAL LEABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,309,300 12,303 E 13 513,550
1
I
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Lakeywoud Housing Authority |
T
nesa L [ ] T |
Finangial Dats SebesleFDS)_ <
1 | .
December 31, 2017 !
1 : !
l i Resident Opporiunity and 3
: Account Deses Business Activilies Shelter Plus Care Supportive Services Elimination Total
Line tem # !
ASSETS;
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash:
111 Cash - i 5 450,143 | § - (] - H - E] 2.160,752
112 Cash - restricted - modentization and developmen - - - - -
113 Cash - other restricicd 1,423,802 - - - 1,971,941
114 Cnsh - tenant secnrity deposils - - - - 33,611
115 Cash - restricted for payment of cument liabilitic - - - - B
[ Total cash 1.873,045 - - - 4,186,324
Acconnls and noles receivables a
121 Accounts receivable - PHA pmject - - - - -
122 Accounts reeciviible - HUD otlicr project. - - - - 12,203
124 Accaunts receivable - other govermmen 5417 - - - 10,152
125 | Accounts receivable - miscellanco. 439,431 N - - 452,300
126 Accounts receivuble- tenant: - - - - 8,828
126.1 Alowance fur dowbiful actounts - tenunt - - - - {2,480
1262 Allowaneg for doublful acconnts - othe - - - - -
127 ‘Nolcs ani receivable- cwren - B - - —
128 Froud recovery - - - - 112,718
128.1 tAllovvance for doubtlul accvants - frand - - - - {60,513)
120 Accrued interest receivabh - - - - 1,185
L20] Total receivables, net of alluwimeos for dowbtful acconnt 444,448 - - - 534,601
Cucrent inveytments
A3 Invesimens - i - - - - -
132 {Investments - pestricler - - - - -
i35 Investments - resiricled [or payment of eurrent kiabiii - - - - -
192 Prepaid expenses and other asset: 2.146 - - - 2.146
123 Invenluries - - - - 42,253
L43.1 Afiowance for absolelc mventorie: - - - - (3,713)
134 Tnterprogran - dne fron - - - - T
145 Assets held for salc - - - - -
150 TOTAL CLIRRENT ASSETS 2,320,539 - - - 4,761,711
I
‘NONCURRENT ASSETS:
iFixed asvets; o B B
161 T [Cend ~ 313,844 - B - - . - REJERTT)
162 | ildi T TiEsES . - - ) - 12,854,851
163 Fumitwre, equij & muchincry - dwelling - . - - -
T6d Tunitirs, equipraent & machisry - A 213,726 ) - - 216,591
165 Tcaschold improvement: o 451,379 - B - 455470
166 A Lated dopreciutior . 9,521,980) - - | - (0.524,815)
167 " |Conaruetion in Progress 3 i - - - - -
168 [ | [wlesmewre ] - - - - -
60| | (Tomllixedamols, nolor Talcd depreciaio_ 4313970 - - - 4313930
Otler non-cutrent nssets ) B
7 Notos wnd bl - 383,554 s - T 3,813,50
172 Noles and ivabl e - past dit i N e - B - -
174 Other pssets | e . - - - -
173 Undistribuled debits - . - - - -
176 Tnvestmen in Job - o - - - 7 -
— [ - - - - -
180 TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS ) £,127.454 - - - 8,127,454
I Ru_f:c_rrs:'.f?.'sl[!?sv_,vf_ ,, 453,984 - - - 548,363
290|TOTALASSF.TS & DEFERRED OUTFLOW DF RESOURCES § 10,042,377 | § - 5 - $ - 3 13,817,510
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Lakewood Hounsing Authority
N.M54 H :
Financial Data Schedula (FD5} |
SR T e e —— e - _—
December 31, 2017
T
P
[ ! i Resident Opportunily and
- I Avcount Deseription Business Activities Shelter Plus Care H Supportive Services 123 Tota]
Line lem # H 1
I ;
LIABILITIES ARD EQUITY:
Linbililies:
Curren Lishilitics:
31 [Bonk averdrall - 3 IS ] -
EIF3 Aceounis piyable< 90 days 12,764 - 165300
312 Aveomats payable > 0 days past dug - - -
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payabl IR.528 N 48,534
322 Acerocd d ubsences - currend porlic: 2,610 - 8.700
324 Acerued i Tiabilit: - - -
125 Acciued inierest payabk - B IR
33 Accounts payable - HUD PHA progran: - B 742
332 Accounts payable - PHA praject: - - 445,734
333 Accounts paynble - oiher povernmen - - 31477
34] Tenant security depesile - - 54,181
342 Uneamed rovenwt - B 1,554
343 Current partion of L-T debl - capital projects - - .
344 Carrent portion of L-T debl - aperating borrowing: - - N
345 Other current liabilities - - -
346 Accrued liabilities - othe - N n
347 Enterprogeatn - due (¢ - - N
30| [TOTAL CURRENT LIABILTTIES 34,002 - 750,192,
N()LLL!I(](]LNT LIABILITIES!
351 Eong-ferm dabi, ot of curren - capital project B - —
352 Long-ferm dubt, net of current - operating bortowing - - -
353 Non-carren lisbilities- ofhes - - 91,053
354 Acoved compensated absences - noncumren 23,492 - A
355 Loan Liability - Non Current - - N
356 |FASE 5 Lisbilitics - B 5
357 | Acerued pension and OPEB liabilitter 1,831,775 - 3 244,426
350] | TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 1,855,267 . 3415450
300 TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,889,569 - 4,174,682
[ [
490] _ [Defened Inflow of Resowrce: 192,654 - 651,294
o
508.1] [mvesied in Capiai Assels, Net of Related Debt 4,313,020 | T - - 313,000
SILI]  |Restricled Nel Assels - . 1,523,707 - " 10,958
512.1 Unestricted Not Assoie 3,122,432 - 2 817,656
513 TOTAL EQUITY 3,860,154 - 9,011,604
+
600 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 10,942,277 $ - 0§ 13,837,530
T
TR oy — -
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Lakewood Housing Authiority
nposa []]
Financial Data Schedule (PDS)

Deccinber 31, 2017 | '

, Section & ousing Diiserctely Preseoted
Avvonm Deseription + Operating Fond Capital Fund Choiee Yoichers Mudnsicemn Youehers | Cornponent Uit
Line Jem #
[REVENUE;
70300, |Nal fonani 7enial savenue 5 - |3 - |3 -8 - I8 -
FU0I, | Tenant revenve - ofer - - - - -
T050t | [Totu] tenant revenne - - - - B
1
70600, ETUD PILA grunis 1028 13,373,035 6487 -

70610; |Capital manis - - - 3 N
F080L, {CHher povenunent granls - - - - A
T, ingonie - nresiricted - - 6,73% - N
71200; [Montgage intercst incoine - - N N B
713007 [Praceeils From dispositiviy of 98sects held Tor sale - - N - N

7130d] [Cost of snlc ol assels - - - - ]

71490 Frowd recovery - - 1 41071 - -
71500 |Oiher revenug - - .563 - -
____ TGHB] |Gai r [oss on sale of fised assels - - - B s
72000 income - retricied - - - - -
I
70000/ HOTAL REVENUE 1,028 - 13,492,411 116,487 .
FXPENSES: ]
JIRRE
1T~ ative
ive seluries - - 632.900 /I -
Auditing foes - - 7,069 sl -
Outside manageinel fies - N - - N
Bovk-keeping e - - - - -
| | jAdverising and marketing - - - - -
E Cimployoe benofii conlributions- admi i - - A4RE, 130 18,681 -
[ [ [Office expenses - - 76,240 4,865 -
Lagal capenses - - 15.694 Loo2 -
Travel - B £ (L] N
Allorated overnead - - - - -
Giler - - 13053 w27 N
[ [Total adminisrative N - 1,233,335 63,12 -

S| | [Assel Miswigemonl Fee - - - - -

I Teuant services

"} | Tenan services - saluries - 5 o - .

Relocation oasts - - Tl e - N
Employee henclif ik onant sTvices o - = - - =
[Teertst survices - ofher ) - P z = " :
[Total tenant scrvices B — z - T f

Ulihlics

|Blezmiciy ~7 T - B
Gas - -
Fuel - — 1 B 5
Labor - CTr - - N
Sewer . - ) T - - - -
Emnployes bunelit contrbutlons- utilities - - - - B
Other tilifics oxpense - v - B - N .
{Total ufiliies - - - T =
|

Ordlinary mai & operation

4100, | | |Ocdivury i ' funs - lapor — B B T .
94200/ | | |Ondinary uninterance und opertions - masorials & ofher - - - -1 5 i
Ordinary maintcnance and oporations - conraclcosts - - - - .
| |Ewptoyce bened jons- ordbary mai 3 - - - - z
|Tota! erdinacy nai o B B N - .

Protgrlive serviess

951001 | | |Proortive servives -labur o - B B - 5
95200 Pyofcclive services- olher confract costs o - - - -
95300] | | |Faotestive services -othee - - - - - .

" 95500{ | | [Empinyes banefit contribullons= protecive ssvicea B .
1 [Tatal pretective services N N N - T
1
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Lakewnad lousing Authorily
NJ054 T |
Finencinl Duta Schedule (FDS)
o
Dccember 3L, 2017
T :
il i Seviion § ousiog Diseretely Prescrted
Account Descrijtion Operating Fond Cagital Pupd . Choics Veughiers | Mainstresn Voushers | Component Unit
Line liem # N
General expenses
. 9614p] || Insurance prentiuns - P 12,033 L) .
N 56300, | | 'Othe gouer] crpenses - - 10,544 - -
O62ED, |3 I phsences - - 17.623 -
96306 | | Taynents in lisw of tnxes - - - =
DGAN0] | | Bad debl - leaant renls - - - -
96500 | | Bad debl- morigages - - -1 -
- ____96600] | | |Bad dobi -uthor - N B T
960 Intcrest expense - - - - N
GE740] | | FAmwmizadion af bond jssue cosis - - P! N N
5GHI0 cxpense - . N — -
Tetal general enpenses - - 42,300 BYG - -
1
YGI0D ' TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES - - 1,275,525 66,017 -
000
EXCESS DFERATING REVENUE OVER OPERATING EXPENSES 1,008 - 12,216,886 710,470 -
97100] | | |ixfraordinary i - B - - n
57200] | 1 [Casnally Tosscs - non capiialzed . - - - N
EED) 1 lnusing axsistan - - 12.009,162 710,470 -
97350 | [IIAP Portability - i - - - - -
974N0] | | [Doprecialion cxpease - - - - T
97500 [ | [Frowd Tosses - - - - -
S7800] | | [Drwolling wnils rent cxpense - - - = -
[T
90400\ TOTAL EXPENSES - - 13,275,687 776,487 -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USKS)
10010] [ [Operating wansrers in . B . B _
10020| | | |Operating wensfers out . - . . B
16430| Opering wanalers fiamlo prinwry goverhinent - - - hd -
10040| | | |Operating transfors fromin componons mit - - - - R
1670 Extreordinny iems. net goindoss - - - - -
10080| | | [Spevial itoms (et gainvloss) - . . . -
10091 | | |loter FroJeot oxcess cash tansfer lu . - . - .
100Y2] |Eccr Praject excess cosh sy out L. - - = =
10093 | | | [Transiors belweon progmin ang project in - - - - -
10094 | | [Transfers between program and project ot (10,571,842)| - - - -
10130 TOTAL GTIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) LLO,B?I,!Q_}_{ - N - -
11
10010 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES Lm,a‘m.sl‘m — 216,724 - -
T e - -
MENM O ACCOUNT INFORMATION: ~
.. 11020| | [Reguired ammial debt prineipal payncnts - - - _ -
11030] | [Bogiming squity L 10570814 - (©5.274)] - I -
11040] | |Priue period auj aawl equily lstors - - - - -
Achod vofeooquity - - 1191,706), - L'
Flunsiing ansisiones payingnts equity - - 456,186 - -
11390] § Ut stk avaifabte ) ] — - - 12,028 816 -
.. L1210 ; |umbcr of oit maufhs Icascd - L 12,544 LI
Equity Roll Facwerd Test: }
Caleulstion from 1AL Siatement 5 - 5 R - 8 151450 [ § - 13 |
BYS Ling 513 . $ - s - 18 151450 [ § - s
s BRE ML - s - Is
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Lal | Housing Authority ' |
naosd  [[[]] i
inanctal Deta Scheiale (FDS) : i
INELAN J——
December 31, 2017 i | |
i
i
i
! Resident Opportuznity
Accown Descriplion 'Business Activities Shejter Plos Care  [nnd Supponive Services TOTAL
Lino hom 4
ENUE:
70300 [Met lenant sental revenue 3 754,841 i § - 5 - - 3 754,841
TU400| [Fenard revenue - ot - - - - -
70500] | | Toial wonant revouric 754841 - - - 75481
70400 [17U13 FITA granis 3 0,695 - 14.212,039
70616] [Capital grants - - - - -
70800) | Other goveramenl grants 1,080,126 - ¢1.080,126)( -
T income - 7 - - 6,746
1200 [ Murtuage itterst incuine - - -
71308] |Proccuils [row disposilion of assects held for sale - - - A
71301 |Cost of sale of asyeis - - - -
71400 |Fraud eecovery - - - - a1.074
71506 [Other revenue 186,896 - - - 258,454
T1600] | Gainor Inss on sals of fixed pssety - - - - -
T2000 ineome - restricted 45253 - - - 85253
111
70008 FOTAL REVENUE 2,107,133 793 60,656 41,088,126 15,358,412
[H]
EXTENSES; i
g ’
S110¢: salaries 251,913 - - - 924,150 |
1708 || 3,360 - - - 16,750
91308 Tecs - - - - _
51348 | |Book-kecpiag e - B - Z
91400 | | [Adveriising and marketing . N z N .
91500] [ |Employec benciit conlnbulions- 107,542 - - - 614,353
91600 | [Offica gxpenscs 13,708 - - - 156,903
17| | |Legal expenses 21,400 - - - 28,005
STE0B] | [Travel 3222 - - - 3520
SI81H | [Allncated overhend - - - - -
91908 } [Other 5,198 - - - 22977
T TTotal 472,333 - - - 1,770,770
t .
92008 | [Asscl Tec - - | - -
|
Tenant services "
T
D2106] | | [Tennnt servives - silaries - - 30160 - 3
92200 || o cosls - - - -
92300 | | [Emplayee beacfit contributions- feami scviees - | 10535 -
92400 5980 - - -
5,080 - 60,606 -
93100, | 106,564 - -
Y3208 | 133,822 - — -
T3] 145,909 - - -
a0k || R - - - - -
93508, N 53,647 - - - 53647
93700 wiliitos - - - 20,129
03800 - - - -
440,071 - - - 440,071
l‘}[di_nﬂrx_-yﬂy_lznin_ce.&.‘ewliﬂl, —
'} Hordary mai and operations - labor 125,176 - - - 125,176
| iOrdinory nusintenance pod operations - mateials & othe o 85,188 - - - 85.188
Ordinry nai and opernfions - conlract costs 357,557 - - m 257,257
ployes Benelit contribulivns endinary mai ~ 53897 - - - 52,807
{Total onlinary malnienaties 530,518 - - - 320,518
Profeclive serviess - -
95100 [} iotectiys sorvioss - sbar - - : E
95200]' Tt Froleciive scrviecs- ollver contruct costs - - - 59,746
| 1} |Protective perviees - oiher - T - 0,689
55500] [ | {Emplyee benefit contrit Truleclive sorvices - - - T
{ [Total protedtive services 70435 - - - 70,435
{1
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Lakewood Housing Autherity
NIDS4

Financial Dada Schedole (FRS)
LI

Degember 31, 2017

Aceount Doscription TOTAL
Lins e #
Gencral expenses
|
94100 Insnrsce promiums 9,714 T.643
96200 [Other geneinl expenses - 10,344
96210 | | |Compensated absences - 17,623
26300 Payments in Jicw of taxes 31477 31477
96400 | | [Bad dobl - tenant rents 2,793 2793
96500 Bad debi- mortimpes - -
96600 Bad debl - other - -
S&T00] Erierest crpense - -
96710 Ameitizotion of bond jxsue costs - -
S6AR0 expense -
Tolal generl expenses 03,984 137,080
U590 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSTS 1.603,321 3,005,559
gHeD
EXCESS OFERATING REVENDE OVER OI'ERATING EXPLNSES 503,302 12,352,853
oG] | |E -
57200 Casualey Josses - von sopilalived - .
97300 © | |[ousing assisianee paynieins - 11,631,205
97350 AT Podubility - in - -
97400] | | [Depreviation copende 398,673
97300 Fraud lussos -
Y7860 Dwwelling uhils sonl expense -
G000 TOTAL EXIPENSES 2.0001.3%M 15,034,911
[
OTIER FINANCING SOULLCES (USES)
10010] Operating Lranskrs in - '
10620 Operating Lranskrs on - -
19030] | | |Operating tansiers fremfie primary govemment - B
1i040| | | |[Opersting transfers fromfio unit . .
LIHT0] Exteaotdinucy fkans, net painfloss - -
10080} | | |Special itews (ne: gain/loss) - -
Luos! tor Project excess cash transher in - -
10092, Inter Projiet exesss cosh ransfer out - -
10093 | | | Transfers between program and project in . 10,071 842 -
L4, Transfors between program and project sul - -
LB10DTOTAL OTTIER FINANCING SOURCLS (U;il‘;s!- 10,971,342 -
[T -
EDDDOIEXCESS (PEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER CXPENSES 11,077,571 323,48)
SN 1 5 1 S —
MEMO ACCOUNT INFORMATION:
11020 | MRequired arnual dubt principal paymsiis - -
[i
oy | Bogineingequity 294,232 11,199,772
11040 | iPrior period acfustments mul cynity imnsiers (2,511,649) 12,511,649
11170] | fAdmind oo cquity. j (193,706)
11180] | {IIvusing essistinee payinents eqnity - 436,186
10190/ | Uit months pvailable . 2460 15,105
11210 | [Number sFynit inonths lensed 2420 15751
Exqquity Rall Forwnrd Test: e
Caleulation from 1WA Siatensent 8,860,154 9,011,604
|BSS Linc 513 s BRE0,154

9,011,604
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